

Operating Instructions

Data Logger DL.OCS, Software and Accessories Software and Firmware Release 3.0.0.0



Doc-No. 10.00.0392

Version: 19.10.2015

These operating instructions must be read by the operator before operation and installation! Translation of the original operating conditions

Contents



Introd	duction			6					
1.1	Requirements/Basics								
1.2	Abbreviations								
1.3	Limitatio	Limitation of Liability							
1.4	Copyrigh	t protectio	on	7					
1.5	Spare pa	arts		7					
1.6	Guarante	ee provisio	ons	7					
1.7	Custome	er service.		7					
1.8	Register	ed tradem	arks	8					
Safet	у			9					
2.1	Intended	use		9					
2.2	Explanat	ion of syn	nbols	9					
Produ	uct overv	iew		.10					
3.1	Typical a	pplication	S	.11					
Insta	llation an	d commi	ssioning	.12					
4.1	Commiss	sioning of	the data logger	.12					
	4.1.1	Unpackir	ng	.12					
	4.1.2	Safety no	otes	.12					
	4.1.3	Notes on	installation	.12					
	4.1.4	Installing	the data logger	.15					
4.2	Installatio	on of the [DL.OCS Application PC Software	.19					
	4.2.1	System I	Requirements/Prerequisites	.19					
	4.2.2	Notes on	installation	.19					
	4.2.3	Process	of the installation	.20					
		4.2.3.1	Install the drivers for the adapter cable	.20					
		4.2.3.2	Installation of the DL.OCS Application PC Software	.22					



5

Contents

Oper	ation			24		
5.1	Access t	ss to the software				
	5.1.1	Connect	ing the software and data logger	24		
	5.1.2	Starting	the software	25		
5.2	Login sc	reen		25		
5.3	General	notes on	the user interface	26		
	5.3.1	Header.		26		
	5.3.2	Note on	colors and symbols	26		
		5.3.2.1	Symbols	. 26		
	5.3.3	User rig	nts in the system	27		
		5.3.3.1	Logging in as administrator	. 27		
		5.3.3.2	Change administrator password.	. 28		
		5.3.3.3	Forgot password	. 28		
5.4	Administ	rator		29		
	5.4.1	Informat	ion/actions on the starting page	29		
	5.4.2	Configu	e data logger	31		
		5.4.2.1	General configuration	. 31		
		5.4.2.2	Configure pressure	. 34		
		5.4.2.3	Configure temperature	. 36		
		5.4.2.4	Configure conductivity	. 36		
	5.4.3	Generat	ing/managing measuring series	37		
		5.4.3.1	Generating new measuring series	. 38		
		5.4.3.2	Manage measuring series	. 42		
	5.4.4	Exportin	g measured data	44		
	5.4.5	Graphic	illustration of data	47		
	5.4.6	Further	settings/functions	51		
		5.4.6.1	Export device configuration	. 51		
		5.4.6.2	Import device configuration	. 53		
		5.4.6.3	Change the language of the user interface	. 54		
		5.4.6.4	Connection settings	. 54		
		5.4.6.5	Firmware update	. 55		
5.5	Operator	r		57		
	5.5.1	Informat	ion/actions on the starting page	57		
	5.5.2	Exportin	g data	58		
	5.5.3 Graphic illustration of data					

Contents



6	Maint	tenance .		.61			
	6.1	Cleaning	g the membrane	.61			
	6.2	Battery change					
	6.3	Cleaning	g the conductivity probe	.64			
	6.4	Recalibr	ation	.64			
	6.5	Disposa	l	.64			
7	Help/	troubles	hooting	.65			
	7.1	Help/trou	ubleshooting for the installation	.65			
		7.1.1	Problems with the installation of the drivers for the adapter cable	.65			
		7.1.2	Personal firewalls, safety programs and user account control (UAC)	.66			
	7.2	Help/trou	ubleshooting in operation	.67			
		7.2.1	Which number does the COM port of the connected data logger have?	.70			
		7.2.2	Data logger is not recognized	.70			
	7.3	Help/trou	ubleshooting with the firmware update	.72			
8	Tech	nical data	a	.73			
	8.1	Battery u	usage duration	.73			
9	Appe	ndix		.75			
10	Chan	ge index		.75			
Inde	ex	-		.76			
				-			



1 Introduction

1.1 Requirements/Basics

You need basic knowledge on the Microsoft Windows operating system to understand these operating instructions. In the interest of a good overview and legibility, standard functions, such as file functions, are not explained in these instructions.

1.2 Abbreviations

Abbreviation	Meaning
DL	Data logger
OCS	Product is based on OCS technology
USB	Universal serial bus
RS-485	Serial bus for data transmission with the DL.OCS
MSR	Data series
GUI	Graphical user interface

Tab. 1: Abbreviations

1.3 Limitation of Liability

All information and notes in these instructions have been put together under consideration of the applicable standards and provisions, the state of the art and our many years of insights and experiences.

The manufacturer assumes no liability for damage due to:

- Non-observation of these instructions
- Non-intended use
- Use of untrained staff
- Unauthorized conversions
- Technical changes
- Use of unapproved replacement parts

The actual scope of delivery may deviate from the expectations and illustrations here in special designs, utilization of additional order options or due to the latest technical changes.

Apart from this, the obligations agreed on in the supply contract, the general terms and conditions and the delivery conditions of the manufacturer and the statutory rules applicable at the time of conclusion of the contract shall apply.

Introduction



Warranty

The manufacturer guarantees the function of the applied process technology and the published performance parameters.

The warranty period shall commence at the time of delivery of the device to the customer.

Components shall be excluded from the guarantee and claims for defects if the damage has been caused by the user.

1.4 Copyright protection

The operating instructions must not be provided to any third parties without the written consent of the manufacturer.



NOTE!

The content, texts, drawings, pictures and other illustrations are copyright-protected and subject to the commercial property rights. Any abusive utilization is punishable.

Reproductions of any kind and form - even in excerpts - as well as use and/or disclosure of the contents shall not be permitted without written consent of the manufacturer.

1.5 Spare parts



ATTENTION!

Wrong or defective spare parts may cause damage, malfunction or total failure.

Therefore:

→ Only use genuine spare parts from the manufacturer.

Purchase spare parts through the authorized dealer or directly from the manufacturer. Address on the reverse page.

1.6 Guarantee

For guarantee, see "General terms and conditions".

1.7 Customer service

STS provides Global support either directly or through its worldwide group of partners.

Details of your local contact can be obtained by contacting us directly via phone, fax or email provided on the last page.



1.8 Registered trademarks

Microsoft®, Windows®, Windows Vista® and the Windows logo are registered trademarks of Microsoft Corporation in the United States of America and/or in other countries.

Any other brand and product names are registered trademarks of the respective companies and organizations.

Safety



2.1 Intended use

The data logger DL.OCS is only intended for remote long-term monitoring of liquid levels (e. g. potable water, sewage).

The use of corrosive materials is only possible with limitations.

Application and media compatibility must be discussed with STS before commissioning or when ordering.

Use in salt or brackish water is only recommended for the data logger with titanium housing.

Only use the device according to the technical data (see data sheet).

Use the data logger as intended.

The operating instructions should be complied with.

The user will be responsible for any damage incurred through nonintended use.

2.2 Explanation of symbols

Warning notes

Warning notes are marked with symbols in these operating instructions. The notes are associated with words that express the scope of the danger.

Comply with the notes and act with caution to avoid accidents, injury and property damage.



ATTENTION!

... indicates a potentially dangerous situation that may cause slight or minor injury if not avoided.



CAUTION!

... indicates a potentially dangerous situation that may cause property damage if not avoided.

Advice and recommendations



NOTE!

... highlights useful advice and recommendations, as well as information for efficient and interferencefree operation.



3 **Product overview**



Fig. 1: Product overview data logger DL.OCS

- 1 Data logger
- Mounting and safety notes 2
- Spare desiccant 3
- Spare battery 4
- **Connection housing** 5
- 9 **DL.OCS** Application PC

6

7

8

Software

USB driver

Data logger cable

Adapter cable USB/RS485

There are different variations of the data logger:

- Housing of stainless steel or titanium
- With or without conductivity probe
- With battery supply or external power supply via Y-cable. The variation with external supply also has a battery for bridging if the power supply is interrupted.
- Various process connections (closed or for screwing into a system)
- Absolute design (without cables and connection housings, the adapter cable is connected right to the data logger)

Product overview



3.1 Typical applications

On-site monitoring of the levels of ground water, potable water and surface waters (data must be read out on site)

- Monitoring of surface waters, such as rivers, lakes, salt or brackish water
- Monitoring of water quality/salt content
- Tide monitoring
- Monitoring ground water lowering or raising
- Hydrological preliminary examination for construction projects



4 Installation and commissioning

4.1 Commissioning of the data logger

4.1.1 Unpacking

The data logger is delivered in custom packaging that protects it under regular transport conditions. Check the packaging for external damage. Take out the data logger carefully.

4.1.2 Safety notes



CAUTION!

Check the values on the rating plate, and particularly the pressure range. These values must correspond to the required technical data. The seals are made of Viton (FPM), unless the order confirmation states differently.



ATTENTION!

Have your device installed by specialists. Observe the national safety provisions when installing and operating the data logger.



CAUTION!

Excessive vibrations, impact and pressure peaks may falsify measurements and damage the data logger.



CAUTION!

Use a data logger with titanium housing in case of abrasive material or salt water.



CAUTION!

Observe that the battery housing is completely closed after installation (no seals visible).

4.1.3 Notes on installation



ATTENTION!

There is a danger of injury when screwing the data logger directly into a pressurized system!

Connect the data logger to depressurized systems only.





NOTE!

Some data loggers are delivered with a yellow protective cap for the pressure connection. Remove the cap before you use the data logger.

- Do not install the data logger in the direct proximity of motors, pumps, valves, heat sources or other possible interference sources.
- Protect the membranes from damage. Do not touch the membranes.
- Data logger with cable exit: Avoid damage to the cable jacket. Observe the maximum permitted medium temperature of the cable referenced on the data sheet.
- Do not kink/excessively bend the cable or route it over sharp edges. Avoid abrasion of the cable.
- Keep tension of the cable and the cable socket to the minimum.
- Observe a max. tightening torque of 20 Nm when screwing the data logger into a system!
- Avoid the formation of ice in the protective cap of the data logger. Ice falsifies the measuring accuracy and may cause destruction of the membrane.
- The data logger is provided with a breather to provide relative compensation of pressure. Avoid clogging of this and its placement in a high relative humidity location (see Fig. 2).



Fig. 2: Breather for relative compensation at the connection housing





CAUTION!

Ensure that the connection at the data logger is closed again carefully with the yellow protective cap after disconnecting the cable from the data logger!



NOTE!

When inserting a new battery into the data logger, the time is reset to 2000-01-01.

At initial commissioning, the data logger must be configured via the software by an administrator; see chapter 5.4.2.



4.1.4 Installing the data logger



Fig. 3: Setup of a measuring point

- 1 Closure cap
- 2 Connection housing
- 3 Plastic insert
- 4 Data logger cable
- 5 Data logger
- 6 Conductivity probe
- 7 Pressure sensor for level
- 8 Measuring range
- 9 System length
- 10 Depth to water



The data logger is installed by suspension in a monitoring well or similar (observation well).

If the data logger is to be screwed into a system for an industrial application, please contact your STS sales partner.

- Installation material (closure caps, adapter plates/flanges, etc.) for the data logger can be purchased from STS; contact your STS sales partner.
- There are closure caps for measuring wells with a diameter of 2" and 4".



Fig. 4: Installation with closure cap 2" on monitoring well 2"

- 1 Closure cap 2" 3
- 2 Connection housing of the 4 data logger
- Plastic insert
 - Monitoring well 2"





Fig. 5: Installation with closure cap 4" on monitoring well 4"

- Closure cap 4" 1
- Plastic insert 4
- Connection housing of the 2 data logger
- 5 Opening for contact
- gauges
- 3 Adapter disc 4"
- 6 Monitoring well 4"
- Use the adapter plate/flange for installation on monitoring wells with a diameter of 2" to 4.5". Adapter plates are available with a cut-out for contact gauges for reference measurement.



Fig. 6: Adapter disc for closure cap 4"

- 1 Adapter disc 4"
- Opening 2" for plastic insert 2
- Opening for contact gauges 3



- The plastic insert is directly suspended in the closure cap or the adapter plate/flange.
- Determine current depth to water with contact gauges and write it down. The depth to water is needed for the later configuration of the data logger.
- Before immersing the data logger in the measuring well, insert the battery into the data logger (see chapter 6.2) and remove the yellow protection cap from the pressure connection (if present).
- Route the data logger and data logger cable through the plastic insert from above. Slowly and carefully lower the data logger into the measuring well until the data logger is suspended from the connection housing in the plastic insert.
- Close closure cap.

If you have any questions/problems, contact your STS sales partner.



4.2 Installation of the DL.OCS Application PC Software

4.2.1 System Requirements

Туре	Prerequisites					
PC, Notebook, Netbook	At least: x86 CPU with dual core, 1.6 GHz Hard disc memory 10 GB 2 GB RAM	Recommended: Intel Core i5 or equal Hard disc memory 10 GB 8 GB RAM Windows 7 or above (64-Bit)				
Tablet computer	Runs only on x86-computers under Microso DL.OCS Application PC software on a table partner.	oft Windows. If you want to use the et computer, contact your STS sales				
Operating system	Microsoft Windows XP SP3, Windows 7, W	/indows 8, Windows 8 Pro (32- or 64-Bit)				
Software	DL.OCS Application PC software installation DVD or downloaded installation package					
Driver	Adapter cable driver USB<->RS485 on DV	D or as driver installation package				

Tab. 2: System Requirements



NOTE!

Observe that your Windows system is up to date with all patches!



NOTE!

This software does not work with Windows 8 RT (a special version of Windows 8 for tablet computers with ARM processor).

4.2.2 Notes on installation



ATTENTION!

Danger of data loss!

When the software is installed on a computer for the first time, the installation program will reboot the computer without warning. This may cause data loss!

Therefore:

→ Save your data and close all other applications before starting the installation program!



NOTE!

Deactivate virus scanners and other safety services during installation.



- If Windows (UAC, firewall) or other safety and access control tools ask you to grant access to applications, services and web servers (e.g. uhttpd.exe) and to permit them to start during installation, confirm this prompt and, if applicable instruct your software to remember this choice. For more information, see chapter 7.1.2.
- The software must be installed by an administrator.
- All configurations in the software, including database and administrator password, are saved individually for the logged-on operator.
- An internet connection is recommended for installation of the driver for the adapter cable. The drivers are also enclosed on the DL.OCS Application PC Software-DVD.

If any problems occur in installation, see chapter 7.1.

4.2.3 Process of the installation

- 1. Switch on the computer.
- 2. Connect the computer to the data logger DL.OCS via the adapter cable USB/RS485.
- 3. Install the drivers for the adapter cable, see chapter 4.2.3.1.
- 4. Close all browsers and install the DL.OCS Application PC Software from the enclosed DVD, see chapter 4.2.3.2.
- 5. At initial commissioning, the data logger must be configured via the software by an administrator; see chapter 5.4.2.
- 6. Then data series can be drawn up, see chapter 5.4.3.

4.2.3.1 Install the drivers for the adapter cable.

The data logger is connected to the enclosed adapter cable USB/RS485. If you have not installed any drivers for this device yet, you should do this now.

The drivers are enclosed on the DL.OCS Application PC Software-DVD. Use the current drivers (USB/RS485 drivers CDM 2.08.24 with WHQL-certification).



Installation instructions

- 1. Switch on the computer (without connected USB adapter!) and connect the adapter for USB-/RS485 to a free USB port after start-up.
- 2. (If possible) the computer should be connected to the Internet.
- 3. The window "New hardware found" is displayed.
- 4. Let Windows look online for the required drivers.
 - Usually, Windows will be able to find functional drivers online and install them automatically.
 - If this is not the case, install a suitable driver for your Windows installation from the enclosed DL.OCS Application PC Software-DVD.
- 5. Drivers for the adapter USB/RS485 and for the serial port or USB port must be installed. Therefore, the installation wizard appears twice.
- 6. Reboot your computer after installation of the driver even if the installation wizard does not expressly ask you to.

Some Windows installations will ask you to insert a CD-ROM for the driver installation as soon as you connect a new USB <-> RS485 adapter cable. Keep the CD-ROM at hand or copy the driver directory to the computer.

Installation of the drivers is a task that is monitored precisely by the safety systems of Microsoft Windows and virus scanners and safety packs. During this process, an administrator with computer-technical specialist knowledge should be available.

Installation of these drivers in Windows 8 is possible, but special instructions of the hardware manufacturer must be observed, since its drivers are not signed by Microsoft. When you start a DL.OCS under Windows 8, please inform your STS sales partner before starting installation so that we can organize seamless support for you.



4.2.3.2 Installation of the DL.OCS Application PC Software

Save your data and close all other applications before starting the installation program!

Insert the DL.OCS Application PC Software-DVD into the computer's DVD drive.

The installation program starts automatically. If the installation program does not start automatically, start setup.exe in Windows Explorer.

	data
	Firmware
	manual
	noesis_OCS_native
	USB RS485 driver 4N-GX-CDM 2.06.00 WHQL Certified
	USB RS485 driver CDM 2.08.24 WHQL Certified
	AUTORUN.INF
210	setup.exe
585	sts.ico

Fig. 7: Software directory with setup.exe

Click "Install DL.OCS Application PC Software" to start the installation.



Fig. 8: Installation screen

After successful installation, the desktop shows the symbol "noesis OCS native".





Fig. 9: Desktop symbol

The desktop symbol can be used to start the software. The start/stop screen opens.



Fig. 10: Start/stop screen





NOTE!

For system-related reasons, the screenshots in these instructions may deviate from the ones actually displayed.

5.1 Access to the software

5.1.1 Connecting the software and data logger

For the software to recognize the adapter cable USB<->RS485 and the data logger, the cable must be connected to the data logger and the computer/tablet before you start the DL.OCS Application PC Software!



CAUTION!

Ensure that the connection at the data logger is closed again carefully with the yellow protective cap after disconnecting the cable from the data logger!



NOTE!

Only one data logger at a time can be connected to the computer and the software!



NOTE!

The cable must be connected directly to the computer/tablet. The reading cable must not be connected to a USB-HUB.



NOTE!

If the data logger with external power supply has been disconnected from the power supply for an extended period, its system clock is reset to 2000-01-01 and must be set again according to chapter 5.4.2.1.



5.1.2 Starting the software



CAUTION!

Close all running browsers before starting the DL.OCS Application PC Software. Otherwise, a conflict may occur with the enclosed browser "SRWare Iron Portable"!

When the DL.OCS Application PC Software has been started, the start button starts the enclosed program "SRWare Iron Portable".

5.2 Login screen

Choose t	he DL.OCS you want to work with	Licenc	:es ?
	Select language		
	After changing the GUI language, the site will	reload.	
	English	۲	
	Select COM-Port		
	Select the COM-Port, the DL.OCS is attache	ed to	
	COM0_COM_OCS	O	
	Start		

Fig. 11: Login screen

Select the language of the user interface from the drop-down list "Select language". The page is reloaded.

From the dropdown list "Select COM-Port" (list of all active COM ports), select the COM port to which the data logger with the adapter cable is connected. The COM port is marked "USB Serial Port". If it is unclear to which COM port the data logger is connected, see chapter 7.2.1.

Push "Start". The start page for the operator (see chapter 5.5) or administrator (see chapter 5.4) opens, depending on which one was last active.



5.3 General notes on the user interface

5.3.1 Header



Fig. 12: Header

The header is present in all OCS software modules. The name of the data logger and the current page are displayed.

The header gives you access to different functions of the respective module. The data logger module has the following functions:

- "Choose the device": Return to the login screen for selection of the data logger and to change the language.
- "Overview" Return to the start page
- "Administrator"/"Operator": Changing the operator role (from administrator to operator and vice versa – see chapter 5.3.3). The operator role to which you can switch is displayed.
- "SW Settings": Changing the language of the graphical user interface, the administrator password or the network settings (for administrator only).
- "Licenses": Call the license texts as a PDF, provided that a PDF reader is installed.
- "?": Call the operating instructions as a PDF, provided that a PDF reader is installed.

5.3.2 Note on colors and symbols

Areas between 0% and 100% are presented by colored dots according to the following chart:

- blue: 0–50 % (normal)
- orange: 50-75 % (critical)
- red: 75–100 % (blocked condition empty or full almost reached)

5.3.2.1 Symbols

Symbols have the following meanings





Q	Settings/properties
673	Measurement/logging
	Data logger
-\$ <u>++</u>	Data channel (pressure, temperature, conductivity)
?	OCS help module (call of the operating instructions)
C	Alarm

5.3.3 User rights in the system

Operator:

As an operator, you can export current data and have data displayed as a graph/table. No password is needed.

Administrator:

As an administrator, you have full access to all functions of the software, and can define system-relevant configurations for the user. You need to log in with a password.



After selecting a data logger on the start page and starting the software, the user role that was last logged in is active.

Always log off with the button "Operator" before ending work as an administrator to protect the settings from changes!

5.3.3.1 Logging in as administrator

Log in via the button "Administrator" in the upper right corner next to the help symbol

The default starting login data are:

Password: 123456

To log off again, use the button "Operator".



5.3.3.2 Change administrator password

You can change the administrator password in the settings of the DL.OCS module after logging on.



NOTE!

We recommend always changing the password since the login data for the initial login are printed in this manual and may be known to third parties.

Enter the settings to change the administrator password by clicking "SW Settings" in the header.

Change admin	Change administrator password					
You can change the pas	ssword for the administrator.					
New password						
Retype password						
Change						

Fig. 13: Change administrator password

Enter and repeat new password. Accept the new password with the "Change" button.

Operator names cannot be changed, and no new operators can be added.

5.3.3.3 Forgot password

If you forgot the administrator password, contact the STS Sales Support to reset the password or have a system recovery performed. For this action, a support technician must have access to your computer.



5.4 Administrator

After logging in as administrator, the starting page for the administrator is displayed.

Device Statu	s							OFF
Status		O STOP	PED Batte	ry	9 82 %			
Available data	series	10	Firmv	ware Version	4387			
Used data serie	s	6	Seria	l number	843125			
_ive values a	nd Ala	arms						
H Pressure	-0.001	7 mH2O, Ca	libration	Alarms				
	metho	d: Standarc	1	1 Active	Alarm			
*	29.6 °C	2		🔞 n	ur-lf-2 (Cond	uctivit <mark>y</mark>)		
Temperature								
*	0.0088	ms						
Conductivity								
		\wedge	-j		71	Ć	6	
Export		Graph	Impo	rt Me	asurement	Setti	ngs	
Device chang 4s-Intervall 12.2h nur-If-2 is SUSPE Uhrtest 1 is SUSF test is SUSPENDE Group time is ST Basisintervall is S	ge Hist NDED wi PENDED D with a OPPED v USPEND	tory PED with an ith an interv with an interval o vith an inter DED with an	n interval of 0 val of 00:00:02 erval of 00:00:05 f 00:00:00:00:05 rval of 00:00:0 interval of 00	0:00:00:04 2:00 03:00 00:01 0:00:00:05				

Fig. 14: Starting page administrator

5.4.1 Information/actions on the starting page

Device status

As for operator; see chapter 5.5.1.

 ON/OFF: Setting this switch to OFF will suspend all valid data series (paused).

This may be used, e.g. during maintenance, so that the data logger will not record any measuring data while not in the medium.

Data series in the status TIMER are not affected by this and will start even with the switch set to "OFF".

Setting the switch to ON will reset all suspended data series to the previous status.



Current values and alarms

As for operator; see chapter 5.5.1.

Operations

- Exporting: Exporting the measured data or configuration of the data logger
- Graph: Graphical illustration of the measured data of the data logger
- Importing: Firmware update or import configuration
- Measurement: Generating, managing, deleting data series
- Settings: Configuration of the data logger and the measuring channels

Device change history

Device history of the data logger (administrator and user history) since the last resetting of the history

The button "Reset history" resets the device history of the data logger (administrator and user history).



5.4.2 Configure data logger

The data logger must be confirmed at initial commissioning. Use the button "Settings" on the start page to switch to the page "Settings".



5.4.2.1 General configuration

On the subpage "General", the name of the device, time, device number and owner information can be set.



Setting name and time

Testlogger · Settings	Choose the device	Overview	Operator DL.O	GUI settings CS, Software Versio	Licences n: 3.0.0.0 (2725)	?
General Pressure	Temperature	Conductivi	ty			
Naming						
Set a specific name for this device.						
Name Testlogge	er					
Save						
Clock settings						
Check the device clock (DD.MM.)	(YYY)					
Check clock 22.07.2015 13:5	8:20					
Quick synchronisation						
The clock will be automatically set	to computer's time					
Quick sync						
Set the device clock manually						
Date / Time						
Set manually						

Fig. 16: Subpage "General" - name and clock settings

Specify the name for the data logger and save it with "Save".

Set the internal system clock of the data logger to the current date and time or a reference time.

The standard setting is the current time and date setting of your computer. You are now able to synchronize the time and date with the connected computer by pushing a button ("Quick sync") or manually ("Set manually").

Observe that the system clock of your data logger is set properly!





CAUTION!

Caution for clock settings!

There may be side effects when changing the time settings, particularly when switching between summer and winter time and when the time has been reset by a dead battery.

E.g. if there are already measured data with the same time stamp, they will not be overwritten; the recording will only start again after a time for which no measured data are present yet.

Setting device number and owner information

Device number							
Set a specific device number.							
Device number	843125						
Save							
Owner informa	tion						
Provide general owner in	nformation about this device.						
Company name	STS Sensor Technik Sirnach AG						
Email							
Address							
ZIP							
City							
Save							

Fig. 17: Subpage "General" - Device number and Owner information

The device number by default corresponds to the serial number of the data logger, but may also be changed by input into the field "Device number" and then pushing "Save".

This can be used, e.g., when a replacement device (with a different serial number) is to be run under the same device number as the old device.

Enter owner information into the corresponding fields and then "Save".



5.4.2.2 Configure pressure

	Choose the device Overview Operator GUI settings Licences DLOCS, Software Version: 3.0.0.0 (2725)
General	Pressure Temperature Conductivity
Channel defau	Ilt configuration
Default unit	mH2O
/lax. decimal places	4
Save	
Channel calibr	ration
alibrate this channel.	
🔽 Use unit's defau	lt density
💋 Use unit's defau	It gravity
Offset	0
Sain	1
Calibration method	Distance to water
	O Tare
	Standard
are	1.00
he reference value ge ressing the button be	ts assigned when you load the page or you switch the method. You can reassign by low.
Reset reference va	lue
	Storage value
	**
	Reference value
	* -0.0027 mH2O *
Save	

Fig. 18: Sub-page "Pressure"

Channel default configuration

Choose the standard unit of measurement for the pressure channel from the dropdown list and then "Save".

The maximum decimal digits for the chosen unit are displayed.



Channel calibration

The following settings are possible to calibrate the pressure channel:

- Density of the medium to be measured: The software uses either a standard value for the density or corrects the measured value with the density entered. Setting the density is only useful when the calibrated units are not pressure measuring units (such as bar or mbar). At the moment, density is defined via the chosen unit of measurement. The decimal digits are limited to 4.
- Gravity: Use unit's default gravity or enter specific value. Since gravity is not a constant value but will change slightly depending on geographic location, this can be adjusted sitespecific.

Only applies to measured units when useful, e.g. "mH2O" In other cases e.g. in the unit mbar, this value is set to 1.

- Offset: Adds an offset for the measured value
- Gain: Multiplies the measured value by a factor
- Calibration method:
 - Distance to water: The height difference between the reference point and the liquid level is called distance to water. This height difference can be determined with an electric contact gage or something similar and then entered in the field "Distance to water". When changing the liquid level, this also changes the distance to water, which is then measured or saved.
 - Tare: If the zero point of the measurement (the position of the sensor membrane) does not match the zero point of the medium (measured depth not identical to effective depth), the currently measured pressure can be set as the effective value in the data logger.
 - Standard: The measured value is saved.
- Reset reference value: This button resets the value in Tare or "Distance to water" to the measured value specified in the device.

Save settings with "Save".



5.4.2.3 Configure temperature

				operator	dorsettings	Licences	
				DL.O	CS, Software Versio	on: 3.0.0.0 (2725)	
General	Prossure	Temperature	Conductivity	,			
hannel defa	ult confi	guration					
efault unit			°C				O

Fig. 19: Sub-page "Temperature"

Choose "default unit" for temperature measurement from the dropdown list and then "Save".

The maximum decimal digits for the chosen unit are displayed.

5.4.2.4 Configure conductivity

		Choose the device	Overview	Operator	GUI settings	Licences	6
				DL.O	CS, Software Versio	n: 3.0.0.0 (2725)	
General	Pressure	Temperature	Conductivi	ty			
Channel defau	la soufie						
channel delau	it config	guration					
Default unit	it config	guration	ms	5			O
Default unit Default range		guration	m5 2m	s			0
Default unit Default range Default compensation		uration	m5 2m Nor	5 5			0

Fig. 20: Sub-page "Conductivity"

The following settings are possible to configure the conductivity channel:

- Default unit: Choose the unit for the conductivity measurement from the dropdown list.
- Standard range: Choose the range for the conductivity measurement from the dropdown list.
- Standard compensation: Choose the compensation method for the conductivity measurement from the dropdown list.


Standard inclination: Enter the compensation factor for the conductivity measurement input field.

Save settings with "Save".

5.4.3 Generating/managing data series

To generate/manage data series, go to measurement by clicking "Measurement" on the starting page.



Measurement Fig. 21: Button "Measurement"

- You can generate up to 16 data series.
- You can configure alarms for data series.
- The values that are possible and necessary are shown in the software.
- Up to 4 data series can be measured or read out at the same time.
- Units for measuring channels, settings for Depth to Water/Tare, etc., are taken from the channel settings.



5.4.3.1 Generating new data series

A new data series can be generated in the sub-page "New data series".

Generating quick start data series

The quick start data series records (with a configurable interval) the data measured by all channels with standard settings (units of measurement, etc.). The data series runs until the maximum date allowed by the data logger.

	Choose	the device Overview	Operator	GUI settings	Licences
			DL.O	CS, Software Versio	n: 3.0.0.0 (2725)
New data	series Manage da	ta series			
lew data ser	ies quickstart				
eate a data series	on all channels with de s.	fault units, with the de	fault interval	time, from nov	w to the latest
ate the device allow		s will be auto-named.			
you leave the name	empty, the data serie				
ate the device allow you leave the name ame	empty, the data serie				
ite the device allow you leave the name ame terval	e empty, the data serie				

Fig. 22: Sub-page "New data series", section "New data series quick start"

- Enter name for the new data series.
- Choose storage interval.
- Start the data series with the button "Quick start".



Generate data series in manual mode

In manual mode, a data series can be generated for all available channels with specific parameters, such as start and stop times.

10 slots free		
Choose an existing data s	eries and press the copy button to copy the values below	
Existing data series	Basisintervall	C
Create a data series with s	specific parameters	Copy values
Name		
Data series mode	Standard	C
Interval		
Start date/time DD.MM.YYYY)		
Stop date/time (MM.DD.YYYY)		
Live values from all chann	els	
Channel	Live values	
상 뷰 Pressure	Calibration method: Standard	
Temperature	 30.1 °C (22.07.2015 14:30:22) 	
Att	• 0.0092 mS (22.07.2015 14:30:22)	

Fig. 23: Sub-page "New data series", section "New data series manual mode"



NOTE!

Make sure that the system clock of your data logger is set properly. Otherwise, the data series will not work as expected!



NOTE!

Data in the input fields are only accepted if they are meaningful in context. For example, the end of a data series cannot be before its start.

The number of available data series positions is displayed ("x places available").



Selecting a data series from the dropdown list "Existing data series" permits copying its settings into the fields of the new data series with "Copy values". However, at least the start and stop time should be adjusted at this time, since no data will be recorded for dates in the past.

Enter data for the new data series:

- Name: Name of the new data series
- Data series method: Configure standard or alarm data series (see below).
- Storage interval: Set measuring interval across the time window that opens. The range is between 1 second and 99 days.
- Start Date/Time: Time at which the measurement is automatically started. The standard specification is the current system time. This means that the data series starts as soon as it is saved.
- Stop date/time: Time at which the measurement stops automatically

Save input with "Save". The data series is started at the set start time.

Alarm data series

An alarm data series can be generated for individual channels. Two thresholds A and B are defined. Once the data exceeds or undercuts the indicated thresholds, the alarm data series is started and will record until the default values are reached again. If the alarm data series is recorded, this is displayed on the starting page.

Alarm data series are set up by selecting "Alarm" in the generation in manual mode at "Data series mode".



CONTRACTOR OFFICE AND ADDRESS OF A DESCRIPTION	series and press the copy putton to copy the values below	
Evicting data social	Becketana B	0
existing data series	Bassintervan	
		Copy values
reate a data series with	specific parameters	
Vame		
Data <mark>s</mark> eries mode	Alarm	0
nterval		
itart date/time DD.MM.YYYY)		
itop date/time		
MM.DD.YYYY)	1000	
Inreshold A	1000	
Threshold B	20	
Variation 1	†	
Choose the active alarm	channel.	
 Choose the active alarm Pressure Temperature 	channel.	
 Pressure Temperature Conductivity 	channel.	
O Pressure Temperature Conductivity Choose channels for wh	channel.	
Choose the active alarm Pressure Temperature Conductivity Choose channels for wh Pressure Pressure	channel.	
Choose the active alarm Pressure Conductivity Choose channels for wh Pressure Temperature Temperature	channel.	
Choose the active alarm Pressure Conductivity Choose channels for wh Pressure Temperature Conductivity	channel.	
Choose the active alarm Pressure Temperature Conductivity Choose channels for wh Pressure Temperature Conductivity he values from all char	channel.	
Choose the active alarm Pressure Conductivity Pressure Temperature Choose channels for wh Pressure Choose channels for wh Choose channels for	ich this alarm will log data when active.	
Choose the active alarm Pressure Conductivity Choose channels for wh Pressure Pressure Conductivity Live values from all char Channel	Ich this alarm will log data when active.	
Choose the active alarm Pressure Temperature Conductivity Choose channels for wh Pressure Conductivity Choose channels for wh Choose channels for wh Choose channels for wh Choose channels for wh Choose channels for wh Pressure Choose channels for wh Choose channel for wh Choose channels for wh Choose channel for wh Cho	Inels Live values Catibration method: Standard Catibration method	
Choose the active alarm Pressure Conductivity Choose channels for wh Pressure Conductivity Choose channels for wh Pressure Conductivity Choose channels for wh Choose channels for wh Choos	inels Live values Calibration method Standard - 0.0035 mH2O (22.07.2015 14:31:49) 30.1 °C (22.07.2015 14:31:49)	

Fig. 24: Sub-page "New data series", section "New data series manual mode", Alarm data series



In addition to the standard data series, the following information must be provided:

- Thresholds A and B: The normal range is between the values A and B. If the normal range is exceeded or undercut, the alarm data series is started.
 - Check that the two thresholds are not identical!
- "Choose the active alarm channel": Choose the channel (pressure, temperature or conductivity) to be monitored.
- "Choose the channels for which data is to be recorded in case of alarm": Choose channels to be recorded when the alarm data series starts.

5.4.3.2 Manage data series

For overview and management of existing data series, switch to the sub-page "Manage data series".

		Choose the	device Over	view Operator	GUI settings	Licences
				DL	OCS, Software Version:	3.0.0.0 (2725)
	New data series	Manage data s	series			
lanag	e data serie	s				
10 slot	s free					
anage ex	isting data series.	Click to open deta	ils.			
Ð 🙍	Basisintervall (II	D: 1)				SUSPENDED
•	Group time (ID: 3	3)				STOPPED
Value Count	Start date/time (DD.MM.YYYY)	End date/time (DD.MM.YYYY)	Interval	Pressure Calibration Method	Active channels	Operations
	16.04.2015	17.05.2015	00:00:00:01	Tare, value: 1	Pressure, Temperature,	Delete
208	15:07:47				Conductivity	
208	15:07:47 test (ID: 4)				Conductivity	SUSPENDED
208 D 🐼 D 🐼	15:07:47 test (ID: 4) Uhrtest 1 (ID: 5)				Conductivity	SUSPENDED
208 D 20 D 20 D 20 D 20	15:07:47 test (ID: 4) Uhrtest 1 (ID: 5) nur-If-2 (ID: 6)				Conductivity Conductivity Conductivity Conductivity Conductivity Conductivity Conductivity	SUSPENDED SUSPENDED SUSPENDED

Fig. 25: Sub-page "Manage data series"

All data series of the data logger are displayed with name, ID and status.

To display detailed information/action on a data series, open the line with "+".





CAUTION!

Do not forget to export all data of a data series that you still need before deleting the data series!

- You can delete old entries (definitions and data).
- Active data series must be deactivated (aborted) before you can delete them.
- You cannot edit an existing definition! You need to deactivate the old data series if it has been configured incorrectly, and generate a new data series with the correct settings. The button "Copy" on the sub-page "New data series" makes it very simple to copy a data series and adjust it before saving.

Status for data series

These are the status options for data series:

- TIMER: The data series is started at a later time.
- STOPPED: The data series has been ended normally because the end data has been reached.
- ABORTED: The data series has been stopped manually by the operator.
- SUSPENDED: The data series is suspended manually and can be restarted afterwards.
- RUNNING: The data series is running and recording measured data.



5.4.4 Exporting data

Use the button "Export" on the start page to get to the page "Export".



Fig. 26: Button "Export"

1. On the sub-page "Export", choose whether the recorded measured data is to be selected by date ("Period of time") or index ("By index range").

Export E	xport Settings	Export configuration		
Export				
Choose if you want to pl	ot by period of tir	ne or by index.		
O Period of time				
By index range				
Export data series' value	s from the chose	n channels below		
Pressure				
🛃 Temperature				
Conductivity				
Export all data se	ries			
Existing data series		Basis	ntervall	Ø
Info for Basisintervall	ID	1		
	Entries count	233974		
	Start date/tim	e (DD.MM.YYYY) 15.04.2	2015 14:54:25	
	End date/time	(DD.MM.YYYY) 19.01.20	068 03:14:07	
	Interval	00:00:00:05		
	Pressure Calib	ration Method Standard	1	
The feature below is onl export is started. Then it	y available if you will be available	export all data series. If i for the next export.	t is not assigned yet, it will g	et assigned when
Take end date/tin	ne from last exp	ort as start date/time (Not assigned yet)	
	10			
Start date/time (DD.MM.YYYY)	15.04.2015 14:54:2	25		

Fig. 27: Sub-page "Export"



- 2. Select the data series values to be exported. For this, check "Pressure", "Temperature" or "Conductivity".
- 3. Select the desired data series from the dropdown list "Existing data series". Or check "Export all data series" to export all data series.
- 4. Choose date or index range.
- Date: Choose the start and end date/time.
 - By setting a check mark at "Use End date/time from the last export as start date/time", the time stamp saved in the data logger from the last export of all available measured data (no matter if by the user or administrator) is used as the start date for the current export.
 - The time stamp saved in the data logger from the last export of all available data can be reset with the button "Reset last export time".
- Index: Choose the start and end index
- 5. Use the button "Export" to export the selected data as a .csvfile onto the connected computer.



CAUTION!

Caution when saving the export file with the "Save as" dialog. Existing data can be overwritten.

For saving the file with the data, the "Save as" dialog of the browser will appear by default.

The administrator can also set that the file is automatically saved (with browser settings).

Attention! The settings may be reset in case of software updates or new operators.



CAUTION!

If the data export process is aborted, this may cause corrupt data or errors. Therefore:

→ Do not refresh or close the browser window during data export. Do not restart your browser, software and PC.



Export settings

	Ch	oose the device	Overview Ope	arator	GUI settings	Licences	5
				DL.OCS	, Software Versio	n: 3.0.0.0 (2725)	
Export	Export settings	Export config	uration				
Export setting	; S ngs for all exports						
Export file format			CSV Text (*.csv	1)			0
Possible patterns to add			Serial number	r			0
	Add to filename	pattern Serialnumber>_ <tt< td=""><td>>_<mm>_<yyyy></yyyy></mm></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></tt<>	>_ <mm>_<yyyy></yyyy></mm>				

Fig. 28: Sub-page "Export Settings"

Settings for exporting the measured data can be made on the subpage "Export Settings".

- File format:
 - Choose "Export file format" from the dropdown list.
- Put together file names for the export file: Choose name component from the dropdown list "Possible patterns to add" and insert it into the field "Export filename pattern" by "Add to the file name". The file name can be deleted and restarted with "Reset". It is recommended to include date and time. Possible components are: Serial number, device number, device name, year, month, day and customized text.

Save changed export settings with the button "Save".

Setup and content of the export file

The export format essentially is a CSV format that can be read by spreadsheet programs such as Microsoft Excel, Openoffice.org Calc, Microsoft Works and other applications.

It contains a header with the following information:

- Names of the data cells
- Settings for taring and depth of water
- Gauge (G), absolute (A), sealed gauge (SG)



- Gain factor/offset
- Start date, end date, data series number, data series designations
- Data logger name, data logger serial number, etc.
- Any other applicable parameters

The structure of the header permits showing/hiding fields as required. The structure adjusts to the data series configuration in the data logger.

The data section is, however, always fixed. It always contains the following information:

- Index
- Time stamp (internal)
- Time stamp in a format that is human-readable
- Measuring data
- Measuring unit
- Measuring data
- Measuring unit
- **...**

The number of data columns depends on the number of exported channels.

5.4.5 Graphic illustration of data

Use the button "Graph" on the start page to switch to the page "Graph".



Fig. 29: Button "Graph"

- 1. Choose whether the recorded data is to be selected by date ("Period of time") or index ("By index range").
- 2. Select the data series values to be presented. For this, check "Pressure", "Temperature" or "Conductivity".
- 3. Select the desired data series from the dropdown list "Existing data series".
- 4. Choose date or index range.
 - Date: Choose the start and end date/time.
 - Index: Choose the start and end index





NOTE!

It is recommended not to display more than 150,000 data records since it results in long data loading time and might be interrupted due to technical reasons.

5. Push the button "Update graph" to load the measured data.

Loading can be aborted with "Cancel" or stopped with "Pause" and continued later with "Continue".



Graph values	
	by date
hoose if you want to	plot by period of time or by index.
O Period of time	
By index range	
hoose channels whic	h you want to plot. Channels with no data available are disabled.
Prossura	
Tomporature	
Conductivity	
hoose an available di	ata series to plot the values on a graph. Group time
visiting data series	in a
no tor aroup time	Entries count 208
	Start date/time (DD.MM.YYYY) 16.04.2015 15:07:47
	End date/time (DD.MM.YYYY) 17/05,201516:00:47 Interval 00:00:00:01
	Pressure Calibration Method Tare, value: 1
tart date/time DD.MM.YYYYI	16.04.2015 15:07:47
A CONTRACTOR OF	
nd date/time	17.05.2015 16:00:47
nd date/time DD.MM.YYYY)	17.05.2015 16:00:47
nd date/time DD.MM.YYYYY Update graph Graph ou can zoom by hold lotting area. During le	17.05.2015 16:00:47 ling the left mouse button and choosing an area. To reset the zoom, double-click on the oading, the zoom is reset when the graph is updated.
nd date/time DD.MM.YYYY) Updato graph Graph ou can zoom by hold lotting area. During le Cancel Pouse	17.05.2015 16:00:47 Ing the left mouse button and choosing an area. To reset the zoom, double-click on the oading, the zoom is reset when the graph is updated.
nd date/time DD.MM.YYYYY Update graph Graph Gou can zoom by hold lotting area. During lu Cancel Pouse	17.05.2015 1600:47 In the second seco
nd date/time DD.MM.YYYY) Update graph Graph Graph Cancel Pause	17.05.2015 16:00:47 In the left mouse button and choosing an area. To reset the zoom, double-click on the oading, the zoom is reset when the graph is updated. As-Intervall 12.2h: Pressure, Temperature, Conductivity
nd date/time DD.MM.YYYY) Update graph Graph ou Can zoom by hold lotting area. During In Cancel Pouse	17.05.2015 16:00:47 Interval 12.2h: Pressure, Temperature, Conductivity 4s-Interval 12.2h: Pressure, Temperature, Conductivity 52.0 53.0 54.0 54.0 54.0 55
nd date/time DD.MM.YYYY) Update graph iaraph ou can zoom by hold lotting area. During lu Cancel Pouse	17.05.2015 16:00:47
nd date/time DD.MM.YYYY) Update graph Graph Graph Cancel Pause	17.05.2015 16:00:47
nd date/time DD.MM.YYYY) Update graph Graph Ou Can zoom by hold Du Can zoom by hold Du Can zoom by hold Cancel Pause	17.05.2015 16:00:47 Ing the left mouse button and choosing an area. To reset the zoom, double-click on the coading, the zoom is reset when the graph is updated.
nd date/time DD.MM.YYYY) Update graph Siraph Ou can zoom by hold lotting area. During lu Cancel Pouse 1,0000 0,0000 0,0000 0,0000 0,0000 0,0000	17.05.2015 16:00:47
nd date/time DD.MM.YYYY) Update graph Graph Out can zoom by hold Dotting area. During la Cancel Pouse 1,0000 0,9000 0,9000 0,9000 0,9000 0,9000 0,9000 0,9000 0,9000	17.05.2015 16:00:47
nd date/time DD.MM.YYYY) Update graph Graph Concel Pause 1.0000 0.80000 0.80000 0.80000 0.80000 0.800000000	17.05.2015 16:00:47
nd date/time DD.MM.YWY) Update graph bu can zoom by hold toring area. During la Cancel Pause 1.6000 0.8000 0.8000 0.8000 0.8000 0.8000 0.8000 0.8000 0.8000 0.8000 0.8000	17.05.2015 16:00:47
nd date/time DD.MM.YVYY) Update graph inaph can zoom by hold no can zoom by hold no ca	17.05.2015 1630047
nd date/time DD.MM.YVYY) Update graph Graph Concel Pouse 1,0000 0,900000000	17.05.2015 16:00:47
nd date/time DD.MM.YVYY) Update graph Graph Cancel Pause 10000 0.85000 0.85000 0.85000 0.85000 0.850000000000	17.05.2015 160047
nd date/time DD.MM.YYYY) Update graph Graph Graph Cancel Pause 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 0,000000	17.05.2015 16:00:47
nd date/time DD.MM.YVYY) Update graph Graph Graph Cancel Pause	17.05.2015 1630047

Fig. 30: Page "Graph" with displayed data



Click in the graph to enlarge an area of interest. Double click will rescale to original size.



5.4.6 Further settings/functions

5.4.6.1 Export device configuration.

The device configuration can be exported, e.g. to "clone" devices. Push the "Export" button on the start page and select "Export Configuration".



100

Operation

	Export Ex	port Setti	ngs Expo	rt configuratio	n			
port	configura	ation						
ort devic	e specific con ing import.	figuration	for clone or b	oackup. Read-o	nly parameters	can only be e	xported, they a	ire
Te	estlogger							
🖸 Nan	ne							
🖸 Owr	ner in <mark>fo</mark> rmati	ion						
🗹 Seri	al number (R	ead-only)						
🖸 Dev	ice number (Read-only)					
🗹 Gau	ge, absolute,	sealed ga	uge (Read-o	nly)				
D E	disting data se	ries						
Only the r	netadata of a	data serie	s gets export	ed and no mea	suring data itse	elf.		
Choose	Name	Value Count	Start date/ (DD.MM.Y)	rtime End (YY) (DD	date/time .MM.YYYY)	Interval	Pressure Calibration Method	
	Basisinterval	233974	15.04.2015	14:54:25 19.0 03:1	1.2068 4:07	00:00:00:05	Standard	
	Group time	208	16.04.2015	15:07:47 17.0 16:0	5.2015 0:47	00:00:00:01	Tare, value: 1	
	test	106465	26.06.2015	15:00:25 19.0 03:1	1.2068 4:07	00:00:00:05	Tare, value: 1	
	Uhrtest 1	8122	15.06.2015	16:51:30 19.0 03:1	1.2068 4:07	00;00;03:00	Tare, value: 1	
	4s-Intervall 12.2h	11026	23.02.2015	14:35:00 24.0 02:5	2.2015 0:00	00:00:00:04	Standard	
Pi	ressure							
🛃 Defa	ault unit							
🗹 Dist	ance to wate	r/Tare						
🖸 Den	sity/Gain							
0	Existing alarr	n data ser	ies					
No alm	rm data series	available (or export.					
Te Te	emperature							
Defa	ault unit							
0	Existing alarr	n data ser	ics					
No ala	rm data series	available l	for export.					
-	onductivity							
C								
co	sult unit							
Defa	ault unit	n data ar	lar					
Defa	ault unit Existing alarr e metadata ol	n data seri 'an alarm	i es data series ø	ets exported ar	id no measurin	ig data itself.		
Defa	ault unit Existing alarr e metadata of e Name 1 0	n data seri 'an alarm 'alue St :ount da	ies data series g art ite/time D.MM,YYYY1	End date/time (DD.MM.YYYY	id no measurin Interval	g data itself. Pressure Calibration Method	Active channels	Alar

Fig. 31: Sub-page "Export configuration"



Check the settings/data series metadata to be exported. Individual items can be opened and closed by clicking "+" and "-".

Use the button "Export" to export the selected configuration as a file.

5.4.6.2 Import device configuration

The device configuration can be imported, e.g. to "clone" devices.

J	
~	

CAUTION!

Present settings are overwritten when importing a configuration file.

Read-only data are not overwritten and are marked accordingly on the subpage "Export configuration" (see chapter 5.4.6).

Push the button "Import" on the start page and select the sub-page "Configuration".

			Choose the device	Overview	Operator	GUI settings	Licences	1
					DL.O	CS, Software Versio	n: 3.0.0.0 (2725)	-
	1.1							
	Firmware up	date C	onfiguration					
Imnort	configu	ation						
Import	t configu	ation						
Import	t configu	ation	Please choose a lo	ocal configura	ation file to i	mport.		
Import	t configu	ation	Please choose a lo	ocal configura	ation file to i	mport.		
Import	t configu	ation	Please choose a lo	ocal configura	ation file to i	mport.		
Import	t configu	ation	Please choose a lo	ocal configura	ation file to i	mport.		
Import Import con	t configu	the device.	Please choose a lo	ocal configura	ation file to i	mport.		
Import Import cor Choose	t configui	ration	Please choose a lo	ocal configura	ation file to i	mport.		
Import cor Choose	t configu nfiguration for file	ration	Please choose a lo	ocal configura	ation file to i	mport.		
Import con	t configuration for	the device.	Please choose a lo	ocal configura	ation file to i	mport.		

Fig. 32: Import configuration

Choose a configuration file on the computer with the button "Choose file".

Use the button "Upload" to store the settings from the configuration file on the data logger.



5.4.6.3 Change the language of the user interface.

After logging in, the language of the user interface can be changed in the SW settings.

For this, click "SW settings" in the header.

Change the GUI languag	ge	
After changing the GUI language, the	site will reload.	
Language	English	\odot
Save		

Fig. 33: Change the language.

Accept the changes made with "Save".

5.4.6.4 Connection settings

The connection settings can be configured, e.g. refreshing of the logger, if a logger is connected, etc.

These values usually do not need to be changed. If problems occur with the network or the network performance, please contact your STS sales partner.

Enter the connection settings by clicking "SW Settings" in the header.

Network settir	ıgs
Default refresh rate for from the different chan	live values from devices and channels in the GUI, e.g. to update battery status, values nels, etc. Minimum is 5 seconds.
Live value refresh interval [s]	10
This interval is used to o	heck all devices regulary, if they are still responding.
Alive check interval [s]	15
Refresh interval to chec	k if alarm data series are triggered.
Alarm <mark>check interval</mark> [s]	15
Fixed timeout for all net	work requests.
Network timeout [s]	60
Network timeout [s]	60

Fig. 34: Connection settings

Accept the changes made with the "Save" button.



5.4.6.5 Firmware update



NOTE!

A firmware update is only possible for data loggers with firmware version 3920 upwards. The current version of the firmware is displayed on the start page of the data logger under "Device Status".

With this function, you can update the firmware of your data logger. You can upload the firmware file into the data logger and then install the new software in the DL.OCS. Firmware updates are released by STS periodically to support, optimize functions or remove system errors and problems.



CAUTION! Danger of data loss!

Export all data before a firmware update.



CAUTION!

Do not interrupt the connection with the data logger and do not shut down the DL.OCS Application PC Software before update is completed!



CAUTION!

Close all other browser windows that are connected to the DL.OCS Application PC Software web interface before starting the update.

Ensure that other persons at other computers cannot establish a connection to the data logger while updating.

On the start page, push the button "Import" and choose the subpage "Firmware update".





Fig. 35: Update firmware

Choose the firmware file on the computer with the button "Choose file".

Use the button "Update firmware" to install the new firmware.

- This process takes about 10 minutes. The status bar shows the progress of the installation.
- If your web browser closes, the process will continue in the background. In this case, do not restart your web browser and do not start any further firmware update! Wait for 10 minutes and then launch the web interface again!
- If another web browser window is connected to the DL.OCS Application PC Software web interface and a firmware update is running, an error message will likely appear, since the data logger cannot establish a connection during updating.
- If problems occur during the firmware update, see chapter 7.3.



5.5 Operator

After logging in as operator, the start page for the operator is displayed.

	er·Overview		DL OCS Soft	ware Version: 3.0.0.0 (2725)
evice Statu	s			
tatus			Battery	• 82 %
vailable data	series	10	Firmware Version	4387
sed data serie	25	6	Serial number	843125
ve values a	and Alarms			
Pressure	-0.003 mH2O, Ca Standard	libration method:	Alarms 1 Active Alarm	
÷	30.5 °C		0 nur-lf-2 (Conductivity)	
lemperature				
***	0.0094 mS			
Conductivity				
				∧ >
	Export		Gra	ph
evice chan	Export ge History		Gra	ph
evice chan, Intervall 12.2 Intervall 5.0SPE Trtest 1 is SUSPE Trtest 1 is SUSPENDI oup time is ST sisintervall is S	Export ge History I is STOPPED with a NDED with an inter VENDED with an inter VENDED with an inter SUSPENDED with an SUSPENDED with an	n interval of 00:00: val of 00:00:02:00 erval of 00:00:03:00 f 00:00:00:05 rval of 00:00:00 rval of 00:00:00	Gra 10:04 2:05	ph
evice chan; -Intervall 12.21 rrtest 1 is SUSPE rrtest 1 is SUSPENDI oup time is ST isisintervall is S	Export ge History Is STOPPED with an inter VEDED with an interval DOPED with an interval OPPED wi	n interval of 00:00:2 val of 00:00:2:00 erval of 00:00:03:00 f 00:00:00:05 rval of 00:00:00:01 interval of 00:00:00	Gra 00:04 0:05	ph

Fig. 36: Start page operator

5.5.1 Information/actions on the start page

Device status

- Status: There are the following data logger status options:
 - STOPPED: The data logger has been stopped and does not record any data.
 - RUNNING: The data logger is in operation and records data.
 - SUSPENDED: Recording of the data has been interrupted.
- Available data series: Number of available data series of the data logger.



- Used data series: Number of data series of the data logger that are in use.
- Battery: Approximate charge status of the battery in the data logger in percent. The battery condition is calculated under consideration of the ambient temperature and the battery properties. For battery usage duration, see chapter 8.1.
- Firmware Version: Current version of the firmware on the data logger.
- Serial number: Serial number of the data logger

Current values and alarms

Display of the current measured values (pressure, temperature and conductivity) and alarms (of alarm data series) of the data logger.

Operations

- Exporting: Exporting the data of the logger
- Graph: Graphical illustration of the data of the logger

Device change history

Device history of the data logger (user history) since the last resetting.

The button "Reset history" resets the device history of the data logger (user history).

5.5.2 Exporting data

Use the button "Export" on the start page to export all measured data from the last export time onwards as a .csv-file onto the connected computer.



Fig. 37: Button "Export"

For saving the file with the measured data, the "Save as" dialog of the browser will appear by default.

After successful export of the data, a corresponding message is displayed under the button.





Fig. 38: Button "Export" after successful export



CAUTION!

If the data export process is aborted, this may cause corrupt data or errors. Therefore:

→ Do not refresh or close the browser window during data export. Do not restart your browser, software and PC.

5.5.3 Graphic illustration of data

Use the button "Graph" on the start page to switch to the page "Graph".



Fig. 39: Button "Graph"

Select the desired data series from the dropdown list "Existing data series".

Push the button "Update graph" to load the data.

Loading can be aborted with "Cancel" or stopped with "Pause" and continued later with "Continue".

Only the data since the last export time are displayed.



NOTE!

It is recommended not to display more than 150,000 data records since it results in long data loading time and might be interrupted due to technical reasons.





Fig. 40: Page "Graph" with loaded measured data

In the graph, you can choose areas for enlargement with the mouse. With a double-click, you can display the graph in the original scale again.

Maintenance



6 Maintenance

Interval	Maintenance work
Every data readout of logger	Check charge status of the battery. Replace the battery if necessary (see chapter 6.2).
	Check the membrane of the data logger for contamination and deposits. Clean if necessary (see chapter 6.1).
	Check the conductivity module of the data logger for contamination and deposits. Clean if necessary (see chapter 6.3).
	For information on the service life of the battery, see chapter 8.1.

6.1 Cleaning the membrane



CAUTION!

Never use pointed objects (e.g. screwdriver) to clean the membrane! They may destroy the membrane.

Screw off the cap to expose the membrane.

Flush the membrane under running water. You can also use a fine, lint-free cloth. Ensure that the membrane is not damaged.



CAUTION!

Remove all plastic parts before descaling (seals, safety cap). Do not use any further aids to remove scale. Otherwise, the membrane may be damaged.

In case of scale deposits, the membrane can be cleaned with commercial descaler. Flush with running water after descaling.

In case of strong contamination, the membrane can also be cleaned carefully with a cotton swab and liquid benzine. Ensure that the membrane is not pushed in or damaged.



6.2 Battery change



CAUTION!

Follow the procedure as described! Improper replacing of the battery may cause data loss and damage to the logger.



NOTE!

Read the package slip of the spare battery for the battery change.

Spare batteries and desiccants are available as a kit from STS and the sales partners.

- 1. Start the DL.OCS Application PC software and log in as administrator
- 2. On the page "Settings", sub-page "General", in "Battery maintenance", push the button "Start battery replacement". This prevents resetting of the date and time to 2000-01-01 and the battery counter will be set to 100 % again after the battery has been replaced.



Fig. 41: Section "Battery maintenance" in the settings



CAUTION!

The battery must only be replaced in a dry environment. Clean and dry the data logger with a cloth or paper before opening the housing.

3. Hold the data logger by the housing, open the lock nut with your free hand and push it back over the cable.

Maintenance





Fig. 42: Loosening the lock nut and pushing it back over the cable

4. Pull off the protective tube until the battery compartment is exposed completely.



Fig. 43: Remove the protective tube

5. Remove the battery from the battery compartment (pull to the right and lift off).



Fig. 44: Release the battery.

6. Insert the new battery. Make sure the polarity is correct. Never use pointed objects (e.g. screwdriver) to remove the dead battery! Then replace the used desiccant.



Fig. 45: Replacing the desiccant

7. Check the sealing rings for cracks. Sealing rings can be ordered from STS. After battery change, push the protective tube over the battery compartment and tighten the lock nut again. Observe that the O-ring seals are not damaged.



Maintenance



CAUTION!

Always ensure that the data logger is closed tightly again after a battery change (no gap between the data logger and the protection tube) and that the O-ring seals are not damaged.

If O-ring seals are defective, contact your STS sales partner.



NOTE!

If the battery is replaced without first pushing the button "Start battery replacement" in the settings, you need to reset the battery counter to 100 % via the software ("Reset battery indicator") after the new battery has been inserted! The date and time must be reset as well.

6.3 Cleaning the conductivity probe



CAUTION!

Never use pointed objects (e.g. screwdriver) to clean the conductivity probe! They can damage the electrodes.

The electrodes can be cleaned under running water or with distilled water and a cotton swab. The electrodes must not be scratched or damaged.



CAUTION!

Do not use any other aids for cleaning the electrodes!

6.4 Recalibration

Return the data logger to STS for recalibration if necessary.

6.5 Disposal

Return the data logger to STS for disposal.



7 Help/troubleshooting

7.1 Help/troubleshooting for the installation

Fault	Possible cause	Troubleshooting
The adapter cable is connected to the computer, but the previously installed driver is not found.	_	See chapter 7.1.1.
Driver for adapter cable is not working/causes problems.	The driver automatically installed by Windows does not match the adapter cable.	Uninstall the driver installed by Windows and install the driver from the DL.OCS Application PC Software-DVD.
Problems or messages, e.g. from firewalls, appear when installing driver, software or establishing the connection.	Firewalls, safety programs or user account control impairs installation or connection to the data logger.	See chapter 7.1.2.

7.1.1 Problems with the installation of the drivers for the adapter cable

The adapter cable is connected to the computer, but the previously installed driver is not found.

Check if the hardware is displayed in the Windows device manager.

- If the hardware is displayed but marked with a question mark or a similar symbol, try updating or reinstalling the drivers in the window "Presettings" (position, designation, function and general appearance of this option differs by Windows version).
- If your system has no adapters for USB<->RS485 and no devices with the designation FTDI or 4Ngalaxy, reboot your computer, and repeat the complete installation.
- If the converter is present, but the driver still isn't working, you can manually refresh/reinstall it in the device manager. Information on the process can be found on the online help pages of Microsoft.

If you and your IT specialist cannot install the driver ready for use, contact your STS sales partner.



7.1.2 Personal firewalls, safety programs and user account control (UAC)

This manual assumes that you call the DL.OCS Application PC Software via a web browser installed on the same computer on which the software is installed. Therefore, we do not deal with network and safety problems when establishing connections via a network (firewalls, other local and network-based safety software, routing, performance). Even if you only use a local connection, it is possible that new and unexpected safety warnings and prompts from your Windows operating system or your safety program of the personal firewall or other similar software are suddenly displayed. Please allow connections to the local host or 127.0.0.1 and give the applications/processes qemu.exe, qemu-system-arm.exe, setup.exe or LabView access.

If you are working in a high-security or otherwise complex IT environment, contact your system administrator. The STS Sales Support can support your IT specialists with additional technical information if necessary.



7.2 Help/troubleshooting in operation

Category	Fault	Possible cause	Troubleshooting
Application slow/crashed	Slow connection/data transmission	Windows runs with roaming user profiles.	Ask your system administrator.
	Graphical user interface works, but reacts more slowly than usual.	Several web browsers/tabs/windows for the DL.OCS Application PC Software application are opened.	Always work with a simple web browser and one web browser window.
	The entire application has crashed, certain buttons no longer react.	System subject to overload. Firmware update running.	Wait until actions have been completed.
		The application has crashed.	Restart the software. Attention! Only when no firmware update is running.
	The application reacts slowly, wrongly or not at all.	Windows has not been restarted for an extended period.	Reboot Windows.
	The screen view seems to be frozen.	Web browser window too small.	Display window in full screen mode.
		Screen resolution too low.	Use screen with a higher resolution (minimum size 1280 pixels).
		Web browser cache is too full.	Empty web browser cache.
Problems with connection/port	The data connection to the data logger is suddenly interrupted. The device is displayed as offline although the cable is connected.	The battery has failed.	Replace battery and check if the data logger goes online again.
		Cable connection defective.	Check cable connections.
		Problems in Windows, block of the communication between the web browser and the DL.OCS Application PC Software or between the DL.OCS Application PC Software and the serial connection or cable.	Reboot Windows. If the behavior continues, contact your Windows support.



Category	Fault	Possible cause	Troubleshooting
	Data logger at the end of the USB cable has been replaced; however, the software does not react to the change.	The software does not recognize automatically whether a new data logger has been connected to the same COM port.	Restart the software.
	Device is not recognized	Several possible causes	See chapter 7.2.2.
	Message "Error when reading the file with the structure information of the device" is displayed.	No connection can be established with one of the devices.	Follow the instructions in the error messages. The system or one of the connected data loggers has reached its capacity limit. Check if a firmware update is running. If the problem continues, contact STS sales partner.
	Error messages (e.g. "No answer", "Device offline"), communication impaired or implausible or application slow.	PC overloaded.	Reboot PC. Restart the application.
Measuring data missing/defective/ corrupt	Measuring data missingTime error (clock set incorrectly, data alread present with the same stamp).Device defective.	Time error (clock set incorrectly, data already present with the same time stamp).	Check time settings and correct them if necessary.
		Device defective.	Contact STS sales partner.
	The file with the exported measuring data is empty.	Clock set incorrectly (e.g. not set again after a battery change or due to empty/defective battery)	Check time settings and correct them if necessary. Replace battery.
	Data logger is listed and can be configured, but no active data is displayed in the overview window and no data is recorded.	_	Contact STS sales partner.



Category	Fault	Possible cause	Troubleshooting
	Measuring data Pres defective cont	Pressure cell (membrane) contaminated.	Clean membrane, see chapter 6.1.
		Membrane defective or damaged (e.g. dented).	Contact STS sales partner in case of defect/damage.
		Conductivity probe contaminated.	Clean membrane, see chapter 6.3.
	Measuring data corrupt	Charge status of the battery too low or battery defective.	Check clock settings. If clock settings are incorrect, replace battery.



7.2.1 Which number does the COM port of the connected data logger have?



NOTE!

It is recommended to always connect the data logger to the same USB port in the computer. If this is not done, the COM port may change. The computer may even try to reinstall the driver.

The COM port number is assigned by Windows and usually contains the designation "USB".

If there are only a few COM ports in the "Select COM-Port" dropdown list, you can try out which one is assigned to the connected data logger.

If the wrong COM port is chosen in the "Select COM-Port" dropdown list on the start screen, the following error message is issued.

- "This device is not responding. Please make sure it's connected properly and check the battery."
- If there is a larger number of COM ports, it is recommended to start Windows Device Manager and unplug and plug in the adapter cable connecting the data logger and computer again. In the item "USB Serial Port", "USB-Controller", "Connections (COM & LPT)" or similar (depending on the Windows version), it can be seen which COM port is removed and added again. This is the COM port that is assigned to the connected data logger.

7.2.2 Data logger is not recognized.

If you connect a data logger that you had already added as a device previously, the software can recognize and activate the data logger automatically. This is displayed in the login screen. If the data logger is not displayed, try the following:

- Restart the software (data logger must be connected to the computer before the software is started).
- Check cable. Check for correct port and integrity of the cable. Check cable for cable break and damage. Check cable and plug at the connection housing for corrosion.
- If this is not the case, you need to terminate the DL.OCS Application PC Software and restart it for the adapter cable USB<->RS485 to be recognized.
- Check if Windows has properly recognized the adapter 4NGalaxy USB <-> RS485. The device must be displayed in the device manager of Microsoft Windows.



Check online how to view the control panel in your version of Microsoft Windows or use the help system of Microsoft Windows.

When you have completed this verification successfully:

- Try to select the device again.
- Check the battery of the data logger.



7.3 Help/troubleshooting with the firmware update

If the firmware update fails and the data logger cannot establish a connection, try the following:

- 1. Load the browser window again and return to the overview window. Alternatively, shut down the entire DL.OCS Application PC Software.
- 2. Disconnect the data logger from the computer.
- 3. Remove the battery of the data logger.
- 4. Wait for 20 seconds.
- 5. Reinsert the battery.
- 6. Connect the data logger to the computer again.
- 7. Call the update function for the data logger firmware (if you have to shut down the software, start it again).
- 8. Perform the firmware update again.

If the update crashed after more than 10 % of the process, the data logger will probably be able to continue the update from there.
Technical data



8 Technical data

See datasheet of the data logger.

8.1 Battery life time

The battery life time depends on the ambient conditions and the measuring frequency.

In extreme cases (e.g. in case of cold temperatures or measuring frequencies < 15 seconds), the usage duration may be relatively short and in some cases could be only a few days.



NOTE! If several data series are active, the shortest measuring interval is indicative for the battery



NOTE!

lifetime.

For short measuring intervals < 15 seconds, an external power supply is recommended.

At measuring frequencies of > 15 seconds, the life time increases, since the data logger will switch to standby mode and thus energy is saved.



Technical data

Log Interval	Estimate of battery service life time in a data series
24 h	10 years
12 h	9.5 years
6 h	9 years
3 h	8 years
1.5 h	6.6 years
1 h	5.1 years
30 min	3.1 years
15 min	1.7 years
10 min	1 year
5 min	6 months
1 min	1.5 months
30 s	21 days
≤ 10 s	2 days

Tab. 3: Estimated battery lifetime in the temperature range -5 °C ... +50 °C



CAUTION!

A temperature outside of the temperature range specified in the datasheet may cause the battery to fail and thus reset the clock settings and cause corrupt measuring data or data gaps.

Therefore:

→ After use in extreme temperatures, check the clock settings and replace the battery if necessary.

Appendix



9 Appendix

10 Change index

Change date	Chapte r	Page	Change	Reason for change



Index

Α

Abbreviations6
Administrator
Administrator password 28
Alarm data series 40
В
Battery change 62
Battery life time73
С
Change index75
Change the language 54
Cleaning the conductivity probe 64
Cleaning the membrane61
Commissioning 12
Configuration
Export 51
Import 53
Configure conductivity 36
Configure data logger 31
Configure pressure 34
Configure temperature 36
Connection settings 54
Contact7
Copyright protection7
Customer service7
D
Data series
Generate
Manage 42
Disposal 64
E
Exporting data
Administrator 44
Operator
F
Firmware update

Troubleshooting	72
G	
Graphic illustration of data	
Administrator	47
Operator	59
Guarantee (Warranty)	7
н	
Header	26
1	
Installation	
Data logger	15
DL.OCS Application PC Software	19
Driver	20
L	
Liability	6
Login screen	25
Μ	
Maintenance	61
0	
Operation	24
Operator	57
Р	
Product overview	10
Purpose	9
R	
Recalibration	64
Registered trademarks	8
S	
Safety	9
Setting time	32
Spare parts	7
Start page	
Operator	57
Starting page	
Administrator	29
Symbols	
in the instructions	9

Change index



19
73
65

U	
User rights	27
W	
Warranty	7



Change index



 SCIGATE AUTOMATION (S) PTE LTD

 No.1 Bukit Batok Street 22 #01-01 Singapore 659592

 Tel: (65) 6561 0488
 Fax: (65) 6562 0588

 Email: sales@scigate.com.sg

 Business Hours: Monday - Friday 8.30am - 6.15pm

Company of STS group

Switzerland

STS Sensor Technik Sirnach AG Rütihofstrasse 8 CH - 8370 Sirnach, Switzerland

Phone: +41 (0)71 969 49 29 Fax: +41 (0)71 969 49 20

Email: sales@stssensors.com Internet: www.stssensors.com

Germany

STS Sensoren Transmitter Systeme GmbH Poststrasse 7 D - 71063 Sindelfingen, Germany

Phone: +49 (0)7031 204 9410 Fax: +49 (0)7031 204 9420

Email: info-de@stssensors.com Internet: www.stssensors.com

Great Britain

STS Great Britain Ltd Warwick CV34 9AE Box 3942 Great Britain

Phone: +44 (0)844 809 9927

Email: contact@stssensors.com Internet: www.stssensors.com

Italy

STS Italia s.r.l Via Gesu 5 I - 20090 Opera (MI), Italy

Phone: +39 02 5760 7073 Fax: +39 02 5760 7110

Email: info-italia@stssensors.com Internet: www.stssensors.com

France

STS France 844, Route de la Caille FR-74350 Allonzier la Caille, France

Phone: +33 (0)450 08 48 15 Fax: +33 (0)450 67 02 43

Email: info-fr@stssensors.com Internet: www.stssensors.com